Cedar Rapids in 1856

Gleanings of an Editor in 1858

Published Monthly by

The State Historical Society of lowa

lowa City, lowa

SEPTEMBER 1968



The Meaning of Palimpsest

In early times a palimpsest was a parchment or other
material from which one or more vvrltln%ithad been
erased to give room for later records. But the era-
sures Were not always complete; and so It became the
fascinating task of Scholars not only to translate the
later records but also to reconstruct”the original writ-
INgS lay deciphering the dim fragments of lefters partly
erased and partly covered by subsequent texts,

The history of lowa may be likened to a pali
which holds™ the record “of successive generations.
To decipher these records of the past, reconstruct
them, and tell the stories. which they contain is the
task of those who write history.
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Jesse Clement

Jesse Clement was born In Dracut, Massa-
chusetts, on June 12, 1815. He was the eighth In
line from Robert Clements, the first American
ancestor of the Clement tribe. Jesse himself was
the son of Asa and Elizabeth Wilson Clement, his
mother being the thirteenth of fourteen children of
Captain Jesse Wilson, a soldier of both the French
and Indian War and the Revolutionary War. His
father, Asa, although called a “gentleman farmer”
by contemporaries was also a “captain” of the
militia.

Jesse Clement lived and worked on his father's
farm until he was almost twenty years old. Farm
work did not appeal to him however, and he took
every opportunity to read a book, a magazine, or a
newspaper, While ploughing a field, going to the
mill, or waiting for his grain to be ground. During
the noon hour young Jesse read while his father
“snored” blissfully In deep repose. At night,
young Jesse read by the dim light of a tallow can-
dle. He apparently had no problem about his
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leisure and Is said to have wasted no time in idle-
ness—a far cry from the present generation of
children gromng up with no form of diversion of-
fered them beyond mowvies, radio, television, and
picture magazines

As a child, Jesse Clement was always a strict
Sabbatarian, a practice he followed when he came
west to lowa to edit and publish the Dubuque
Times. He never missed a church service, even in
his travels, and he Invariably reported to his read-
ers on the content of the sermon and the delivery
of the minister.

He was also a follower of Lorenzo Dow from
the moment he heard that bearded orator give his
first temperance talk. Young Jesse took the tem:
perance pledge and was elected treasurer of the
Dracut Young Men's Temperance Society. Jesse
Clement kept his temperance pledge all his life.
On one occasion, When a certain man was reported
to have died of “congestion of the brain,”" Clement
did not hesitate to write that the man did not have
“pbrain enough to get up a congestion™ and really
died of “delirium tremens.” So thoroughly inbred
was he In the temperance crusade that he consid-
ered his pledge a contract made with his Maker.
He felt that, next to becoming a Christian, the
best act of his life was taking the temperance
pledge.

Temperance was not the only crusade that moti-
vated Jesse Clement. He had admired Lorenzo
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Dow’s long beard and in later life became an
“anti-shaving” advocate, on the ground that shav-
Ing was awaste of time and that It was the mission
of the beard to protect the face of man. These
qualities were reflected in his travels through lowe.

Jesse Clement recelved his education at the Aca-
demical and Theological Institution In New
Hampton, New Hampshire, from 1835 to 1842.
He was an excellent student; the school catalogs
Indicate he was made a tutor while still a student
(in 1839 and 1840). In 1841 and 1842, he was
en%aged In teaching only. Clement always wrote
of his experiences at New Hampton with warmth
and fondness, declaring that the “assoclations that
cluster around that place are among the tenderest
of my life.”

Clement gained considerable experience while
a school teacher. He taught his first school In the
Wilmington, VVermont, school district. He received
$12 per month as a teacher and ““boarded around”
with the parents of his students. It was while he
was a student-teacher at New Hampton that he
and twenty-six other students were “buried In
Christ” In baptism. During these formative years
Jesse Clement wrote poems and articles for various
publications. On August 21, 1841, while still In
school, he married Mary Elizabeth Blood, of Dra-
cut, and set up housekeeping in New Hampton.

An Important and significant era in Jesse Clem
ent’s career opened when he moved to Buffalo,
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New York, on December 16, 1842. One of his
New Hampton schoolmates, John S. Chadboume,
had established a magazine with encouraging pros-
pects that was described on Its title page as a
“semi-monthly journal of literature and fine arts.”
Originally called the Literary Messenger, it soon
became known as the Western Literary Messen-
ger. In May of 1844, Jesse Clement became the
sole publisher of the Messenger. The following
year, he became the sole editor and continued In
that capacity until he came to lowa in 185/.

When Jesse Clement arrived in Dubugque he
found the Key City of lowa bustling with activi-
ties. In August of 1857 Dubuque had seven news-
papers, six of which were dailies—the Times,
Tribune, Express & Herald, Republican, North-
West, and the Democrat—the latter a German
language paper.

1 he Dubugue and Sioux City had been built
westward out of Dubugue to Nottingham (Earl-
ville). The telegraph reached the Mississippi In
1858 The whole northeastern quarter of lowa

was fair game for subscribers for the best news-
papers. Competition was keen and It was with this
In mind that Jesse Clement felt the need of going
out into the hinterland to solicit subscribers and
shunt trade In the direction of Dubugue.

The post offices In existence In Jones, Linn,
Benton, and Black Hawk counties in 1859 con-
trasts sharply with those remaining in 1968.




Benton

1859 1968
Burk Atkins
Gomersal Belle Plaine
Gwinville Blairstown
Linwood Garrison
Pickaway Keystone
Shellsburgh Luzerne
Taylor’s Grove Mount Auburn
Unity Newhall
Urbana Norway
Vinton Shellsburg
Williams Urbana
Woods Van Horne

Vinton

Walford

W atkins
Jones

1859 1968
Anamosa Amber
Bowen’s Prairie  Anamosa

Castle Grove
Duane
Edinburgh
Fairview
Fuller's Mills
Highland Grove
Isabel
Johnson
Langworthy
Madison
Monticello
Scotch Grove
Temple Hill
Walnut Fork
Wyoming

Center Junction
Hale
Langworthy
Martelle
Monticello
Morley

Olin

Onslow

Oxford Junction
Scotch Grove
Wyoming

Black Hawk

1859 1968
Barclay Cedar Falls
Blakeville Dewar
Cedar Falls Dunkerton
Cedar Valley Gilbertville
East Waterloo  Hudson
Enterprise La Porte City
Gilbertville Raymond
Hudson W aterloo

Laporte City
Lester

Mullarky’s Grove

W aterloo
Linn

1859 1968
Banner Valley Alburnett
Boulder Cedar Rapids
Cedar Rapids Center Point
Central City Central City
Centre Point Coggon
Dry Creek Ely
Forfax Fairfax
Kingston City Hiawatha
La Fayette Lisbon
Lisbon Marion
Marion Mount Vernon
Mondieu Palo

Mount Vernon
Nugent's Grove
Necot

Palo

Prospect Hill
Sisley’s Grove
Spring Grove
Springville
Valley Farm
Waubeck

W apsa

Western College

Robins
Springville
Toddville
Troy Mills
Viola

W alker

W hittier
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The growth of the four counties through which
Jesse Clement traveled has been phenomenal.

County 1859 1960

Jones 13475 20,693
Linn 17,720 136,899
Benton 3,063 23,422
Black Hawk 7,095 122 432

While two of the above counties have remained
agricultural, two can now boast the second and
fifth largest cities in the Hawkeye State. Indeed,
Cedar Rapids alone has twice as many inhabitants
In 1960 as did the four counties In 1860.

The gleanings of Jesse Clement on his journeys
through lowa In the years immediately preceding
the Civil War form a valuable addition to the
recorded history of lowa. His observations,
coupled with the advertisements taken from con-
temporary newspapers found In the State Histori-
cal Society’s collections, give a clear and concise
view of lowa as It appeared eleven decades ago.

W illiam vJ Petersen
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Jones County

(During the winter 1858-1859, Jesse Clement, a co-founder
with Dr. George G. Lyon of the daily and weekly Dubuque
Time», made a series of trips over northeastern lowa within a
radius of 200 miles of Dubuque. These trips were made
primarily by stagecoach, by Mississippi steamboat, and to a
lesser degree by the newly constructed railroads, of which
there were only 600 miles of track in lowa by 1860. Printed
in both the weekly and daily Time», Clement provided a de-
tailed firsthand account of scores of lowa communities. A
keen observer, an accurate recorder, and embued with a good
sense of humor, Clement has left a fine record of Jones, Linn,
Benton, and Black Hawk Counties in 1858-1859. The more
obvious typographical errors have been corrected; the full
names (including initials) of individuals have been supplied
whenever possible. The inconsistencies of punctuation, capitali-
zation, and spelling have been left unchanged. THE EDITOR)

Anamosa December 10, 1858

Left Dubuqgue this moming on a trip into the
Interior of the State. Our course leads through
a section untraversed by us before, and we pro-
pose to take notes and print them.  In other words,
we shall keep a sort of journal/ which has been
defined “a dialogue between the writer and his
memory.” In our case, however, the dialogue will
be mostly with the reader—should we be favored
with one.

Passed today, for the first tire, over the Du-
buque Western Railroad, which is now open from
Farley Station, on the Dubuque and Pacific road,

359
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to Sand Spring, twenty miles northeast of Ana-
mosa. The road Is graded most of the way to this
point. Ten thousand dollars more, It Is estimated,
would finish It ready for the rails. WWhen open to
Anamosa, this road will be a great feeder of the
Dubugue market. The grain, pork, 6¢. of Jones
county Will then seek our city for consumption or
trans-shipment. But few, comparatively, of the
four thousand swine and three thousand beef
cattle now slaughtered In this county, see Du-
buque; yet most of them would go there were the
Iron horse on the Western road daily prancing
Into this young city. That road must be hurried
up, or the trade of Jones county will be lost to
Dubuque. To say nothing of the Air Line Rail-
road, which may or may not one day open direct
communication between this point and Lyons on
the Titan “father’ of ship-canals in the West—the
Muscatine and Tipton road already open to Mos-
cow on the Mississippl and Missouri Railroad, Is
working Its way northward through Cedar county,
which borders Jones on the South. The friends
of the Dubugque Western road, then, must bestir
themselves or Its crowning blessings to the “Key
City,” will vanish In thin air. The citizens of
Anamosa showed their sense of the importance of
this road and their confidence In its Directors, last
September, by voting to tax themselves ten thou-
sand dollars to aid In its construction.

At Sand Spring village and post office, three
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miles south of the present terminus of the Western
Road, a good beginning has been made. The
place Is but one year old, yet contains a hundred
Inhabitants or more. A village of goodly size is
destined soon to sprmg Up there. It is In Delaware
county. The other points on the way to this place
are Monticello and Langworthy. The former place
reminded us of the [act that

“God made the country and Man made the town.*

Monticello Is charmingly located on the South
fork of Maquoketa; and Its site and the scenery
around 1It, are delightful. With a little taste on
the part of the denizens of the place, and an un-
compromising and abiding hatred of whisky, it
mey become one of the loveliest villages In the
Interior of the State. It Is In Jones county.

Langworthy—an appropriate name for a station
on the Dubugue Western road, and destined to
perpetuate the name and memory of the noble and
enterprising President [Lucius Langworthy] of
that roacd—has hardly made a beginning toward
a Village. Its site Is on low ground, though not so
low, perhaps, as to make the place unhealthy It
has a post office, hotel and one or two stores.

The other towns, or incipient Indications of
V|Ilages in the northern half of Jones county, are
Bowen’s Prairie, Duane, Grove Creek, and Scotch
Grove. Bowen’s Prairie is less than a year old,
we believe, yet contains something like two hun-
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dred Inhabitants. It has grown up like Jonah's
gourd. Its Inhabitants are New England people,
and are as full of energy and all the elements of
thrift, as their native hills are full of rocks.

Omitting Anamosa In this enumeration, the oth-
er villages and fore-shadowings of villages In this
county are Johnson, Edinburgh, Isbell, Madison,
Highland Grove, Fairview, Rome and \WWyoming.
The last mentioned village Is In the eastern part
of the county, and Is next In size to Anamosa. It
contains four or five hundred inhabitants, repre-
sented to be enterprising and intelligent.

Jones county has 368,640 acres, and 362,436
of them are assessed. The assessed value of the
county, aside from town lots, Is upwards of two
million dollars! The assessed value per acre Is
$5.77.  Unimproved lands can be bought from
five to eight dollars per acre and farms, excepting
In certain favorable localities, from eight to sixteen
dollars. The average price of land Is estimated at
$10 per acre.

Jones county Is well timbered and well watered.
lhe south fork of the Maguoketa river and Its
little affluents water the northern part, the Wap-
sipinicon crosses the southwest part; and Buffalo
Creek empties Into the Wapsy’ at this point. In
the county are five flouring mills, and about thirty
saw mills, and yet but a small part of its hydraulic
privileges are appropriated to the purposes of
civilization.
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The land In the county Is highly fertile, and the
few thousand acres of the least promising—the
bottom or overfloned lands—have lately been
found to be well adapted for the cultivation of the
Chinese sugar cane. In some places, the past
season, where the seed of this plant lay under
water for ten days, It sprang up and did finely.
Dr. 1 S. Dimmitt, the intelligent Secretary of the
Jones County Agricultural Soclety, informs us that
sixteen thousand gallons of Sorghum have been
produced In the county this year. Its average price
Wil exceed fifty cents per gallon. On the main
traveled roads every third or fourth farmer has a
cane mill.

The Jones County Agricultural Society has
finally located its show grounds here at the county
seat, and they have been gradually improved until
they are probably second to none In northern
lona. The officers of the Society are, Roswell
Crane, President; William B Blodget, James M.
Peet and J. N. Atkinson, Vice-Presidents; W. R
Locke, Recording Secretary;, J. S. Dimmitt, Cor-
responding Secretary, and Israel Fisher, Treasur-
er. These are enterprising men, and are doing

much to advance the interests of Agriculture in the
county.

Anhamosa December 11

A day spent In Anamosa has caused us to fall
In love with the place, and we have concluded to
pass the Sabbath here. The Fisher House, kept
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by Peaselee & Brother, formerly of Dubuque, IS
the best hotel which we have found In the interior
of the State. It Is better than the Montour House,
at Independence, and that Is saying a good deal.
Nobody will ever stop with “His Honor,” of the
Fisher House, and go empty or ugly (toward the
landlord) away. Mayor Amos H. Peaselee Is as
popular with the citizens of Anamosa as with the
traveling community; and though a Democrat, we
do not wonder that the “People” Irrespective of
party prejudices, “vote himin.” Linder his admin-
Istration, In spite of the financial pressure, the city
IS progressing. Between two and three thousand
dollars have been expended the past year, In
grading the principal street, building side walks,
and other Improvements. Fifty buildings have
been erected since last spring. Some of them are
elegant private residences, built of brick and in the
most modern style. The population of the city IS
upwards of one thousand. The “Wapsy” runs
on Its south side, and Is spanned by a substantial
bridge between two and three hundred feet In
length. Near i1t Is a new and excellent flouring
mill owned by Metcalf, David Graham & Co. It
has three run of stones. They are of the “Burr”
order, and one of them burst Into a thousand
pieces last night, while under full motion, sending
the fragments In all directions, some of them
passing through the building into the river; others,

weighing from fifty to one hundred pounds being
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thrown across the mill and leaving their mark In
the form of a deep indentation. One fragment
grazed a millers limb and came wathin two or
three Inches of amputating it in a hurry!

Half a mile north of the city is the stone flouring
mil of J. H. Fisher & Son, another durable and
just now highly industrious establishment. It has
also three run of stone. There are three saw mills
In the town; twelve or fourteen stores and shops
of various kinds; two hotels aside from the Fisher
House; three churches; good public schools and
a select school for young ladies, recently opened
by the Misses Isbell, and highly praised by the
first families Iin the place; and two weekly news-
papers, the Eureka (Republican?] and Gazette
(Democratic). We have formed the acquaintance
of Messrs. C. L. D. Crockwell &Matthew Parrott
of the former paper, and Messrs. Mann & Sawwyer
of the latter. These Ijournalists are, happily, par-
simonious of personalities; pay proper attention to

County matters, and their papers are read at home
and abroad.

The bluffs In the neighborhood of Anamosa
furnish excellent limestone of a light color, and
almost as beautiful as marble. Some of It Is used
here and some abroad. People in adjoining towns
and counties send for It to use for window sills,
ca|c|)_s,h&; It Is susceptible of an exceedingly fine
polish.

The County seat was removed hither from
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Edinburgh two years ago. The Court House Is a
plain frame building. A jail Is In but little demand,
and has not been built. Gentlemen who need
close quarters are posted to Marion, In Linn
county, a distance of only eighteen miles.

The Congregationalists, and United Brethren
have church edifices In Anamosa, and the Metho-
dists use the Court House. The Baptists and one
or two other denominations, have organizations,
but no house of worship. Some of them wall prob-
ably build next year, as there Is much enterprise,
In every praiseworthy direction, among the people.

The city officers of Anamosa are, Amos H.
Peaslee, Mayor; A. P. Carter, J. J. Welsh, W. R
Locke and E. T. Mellett, Councilmen; E. Cuitler,
Recorder; W. H. Marsh, Surveyor, and T. A
Griffith, Marshal.

With its excellent water power and other fa-
cilities for improvement, we do not see why Ana-
mosa may not soon have her paper mills, her
woolen factories, her machine shops, and other
manufactories, and rise, one day, to a first class

Interior city.

Sunday Evening, December 12

Have spent our first Sabbath In Jones county.
Went to hear Rev. Samuel A Benton, of the
Congregational Church, the only clergyman
whose acquaintance we have made. We like him
as a man and a preacher. He Is doing much for
the mental culture as well as moral Instruction of
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the community. He Is one of the leading spirits
In the newly formed literary society; Is deeply In-
terested In the public schools of the place, and Is
trying hard to lay the foundation of a literary in-
stitution here which shall eventually rise to the
dignity of a college. He knows the value of edu-
cation, and Is doing his part in its dissemination.

The preaching of Mr. Benton Is mostly ex-
temporaneous. With Sydney Smith, It Is evident
that he does not believe In “stale Indignation and
fervor a week old,” dished out from the pulpit.
He speaks with earnestness, as though he felt
what he said. His discourses evince a wide range
of reading, as well as taste and discernment. His
Illustrations are apposite; his 1magery IS choice;
and his periods are well formed. As might be
expected, he draws around him many of the most
cultivated families of the city. In short, he has an
appreciating, an attentive and a large audience.
In 1t IS considerable musical talent. The singing
was better than one ordinarily hears in the young
towns of the West.

En passant, what power there is In music to call
buried memories from their grave!—The songs of
Zion which we have heard today have caused us
to live over again years of the long-sepulchred
past. Sixteen years ago this 12th of December,
we crossed the Merrimac river to seek a home
near the source of the Niagara, at the foot of Lake
Erie; and few are the days which we have spent
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bodily in New England since the closing month of
the year 1842; but In spirit we have been there
on this sacred day, and many a vernal spot In the
fields of childhood has loomed up before the
mind's eye. Melodies of more than mortal sweet-
ness have come “booming over the ocean of
Memory,” and loved ones from the green isles of
the departed, who went thither long ago, have
semed to be near us.

What a wonderful faculty the memory is! If,
as Locke says with matchless beauty of rhetoric,
“our minds represent to us those tombs to which
We are approaching; where, though the brass and
marble remain, yet the inscriptions are effaced by
time, and the 1magery moulders away;” some ‘in-
scriptions’ retain their original clearness to the
end.—But few people entirely outlive the recollec-
tions of their childhood. Happy Is he whose early
days were so full of innocence that he has no de-
sire to forget them.

Since the muscular sense of the memory Inclines
to weakness with age, the utmost care should be
taken to cultivate it. This art of cultivation has
been condensed by a writer into four rules—"1
The habit of fixing the mind, like the eye, upon
one object. 2. The application of the powers of
reflection. 3. The watchfulness of understanding
which Is known, Is a good sense as curiosity. 4
Method.”

Some people have no occasion to resort to any
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of these arts to strengthen their memory. It has
Instantaneously a most wonderful grasp. Aber-
crombie and other writers on mental philosophy,
give remarkable Instances of memory. Leibnitz,
In very advanced age, could repeat verbatim near-
ly all the poetry of Virgil. Saunderson knew by
heart the Odes of Horace, the orations of Cicero,
and large portions of other classic authors. (Gas-
sander could recite from memory every line of the
poetry of Lucretius, and Michael Angelo most of
that of Dante and Petrarch. We believe it IS
Walter Scott who states that Dr. Leyden could
repeat an act of Parliament or any dry document,
equally as lengthy, after once reading it. Wallis,
the mathematician, not only extracted the square
root of twenty-seven places of figures in the dark,
but kept the unwritten result in his memory for a
month! Some of the most marvelous feats of this
faculty of which we have read, we cannot recall
with sufficient accuracy of detail to repeat them—
omng of course to the fallibility of our own
menmory.

But we are thankful that this faculty has not
wholly forsaken us. It has taken us back to the
home of childhood today. We have trodden its
hallowed ground; have heard the blackbird and
bobolink carol as they flew over the meadow In
which we once hunted for birds' nests; have heard
the whippoorwill In the deepening twilight, have
shaken hands, In imagination, with the companions
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of youth; and have involuntarily looked upward to

catch, If possible, some glimpse of the dear ones
who have broken from our grasp and ascended

to Heaven.
Thanks to Providence for this sweet Sabbath.

Though we have spent It, In fact, among strangers,
we have been, In fancy, among friends—old, un-

forgotten friends—whose faces are before us dis-
tinct In their outlines, as the face of the clock In

the counting room of the Peaslees—which clock
reminds us that the hour for retiring has come.
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Linn County

Marion Decermber 14, 1858

Have spent most of the day at Marion, the seat
of justice at Linn county. Came hither yesterday
from Anamosa, with W. }. Henry, Esg., a mem
ber of the Jones county bar, and an affable and
kind-hearted man, whose practice extends Into the
neighboring counties.

Between Anamosa and Marion are no villages
of a size reaching In population high into the
hundreds. Fairview, in Jones county, and Lindon-
ville and Springwille, In Linn county, have each a
post office, a hotel, and other indices of the begin-
ning of a town.

Marion has about two thousand Inhabitants,
and 1s charmingly situated on high lands, near
the center of the county. It has wide streets, laid
out at right angles; good side walks; a large public
square, Well filled with shade trees planted one
year ago; and other Iindications of enterprise and
taste. The Methodists, Baptists, Congregational-
Ists, Christians and Presbyterians have church
edifices, most of them being substantial brick
structures; and the United Brethren have an or-
ganization. There are two or three public schools
In the place, and one of them Is kept in a fine brick
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edifice, and has at least, two hundred and fifty
pupils. We had the privilege of seeing them all
In the large upper room today, and they made a
good appearance. Mr. Gray and his three assist-
ants, are doing a great work and evidently from a
love of it. Prof. E. A. Cooley, a teacher In high
repute, has a select school, which Is of great ad-
vantage to the place.

The Court House Is a large brick building, with
fire-proof county offices. It Is a very substantial
and commodious structure, built to stand. Its
posli(tion IS at the south side of the public square or
park.

Marion has three hotels, ‘Stone’s,” kept by G. }
Brown, being the largest. We are stopping at the
American, and It being “Court time” the house Is
overflomng. Mr. R W. Hall, the landlord, is
evidently very popular—as he deserves to be. He
always has on hand “enough and to spare.” His
own corpulent person Is a good advertisement of
his house. If there is logic In the saying that “wWho
keeps fat oxen should himself be fat,” may we not
argue that the adipose inn-keeper must take good
care of his customers?

Marion has two weekly newspapers, the Her-
ald, Democratic, and the Register, Republican.
Messrs. Broown & Crowley edit the former, and
Robert Holmes the latter. Both papers are well
rinted, and considerable care Is manifested In se-
ecting matter for them. The editorial pages of



LINN COUNTY 373

both of them are slightly marred with personalities
—though we are happy to see that the conductors
of the two papers are on Intimate and friendly
terms with each other. We have had a pleasant
chat with all of them

Marion has a steam flouring mill, and a steam
saw mill, but does not go extensively Into manu-
factures, It being destitute of water privileges. It
IS surrounded with a very rich farming country,
and Wil yet become a fine city, most delightful to
live In. Its Inhabitants are an active, moral, think-
Ing, and cultivated class, having a large represen-
tation of the genuine Puritan stock. We find a
Glee Club here that, under the direction of Prof.
Marvin, can discourse as sweet music as one need
expect to hear In the West. There Is a large

amount of musical talent In the place, and 1t is well
developed.

The Bar of Linn county we have had an op-
portunity to see In session. |t numbers some of
the best legal talent In the State. Here is the
residence of Judge William Smyth, whom it may
not be Invidious to mention, as his reputation as a
lavwyer 1s not limited to Linn county or the State.
He Is In the prime of life, and bids fair to rise to
the highest seat on the Bench of lowa, or to some
other position equally exalted.

The stirring business men of Marion are
anxious to see the Dubuque Western Railroad
progressing to this point. When opened to the
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county seat of Linn, it will impart great activity to
trade, and give a fresh Impetus to every naoble
enterprise here.

We meet here in Marion, as pastor of the Meth-
odist Church, our friend E. C. Byam, late of Fay-
ette, where he acted as the efficient agent of the
Upper lowa University. He combines business
and preaching talent; Is a practical, stirring and
pre-eminently useful man, and Is as social and
agreeable as he Is energetic. We believe his efft-
clency IS a sovereign remedy for church debts.

We also meet here, Rev. Mr. C. G. Truesdell,
Conference Agent for Cormnell College, located at
Mount Vernon, In the southern part of this
county. We learn that the institution has nearly
two hundred students, and that It Is in a thriving
condition. President Richard W. Keeler is assist-
ed by a corps of seven teachers. This College,
seemingly, has a bright future—Mount Vernon
has a population of seven or eight hundred, and
IS described to us as a very pleasant village. The
endowment fund of its College amounts to nearly
fifty thousand dollars. A young rising town of the
West, with such facilities, must have strong at-
tractions for emigrants with families to educate.

Cedar Rapids December 15

~ Cedar Rapids is six miles below Marion, and
lies directly on the Cedar River. It has a water
power superior to that of Cedar Falls, because the
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stream here has much greater volume. It can all be
appropriated to hydraulic purposes, and wll be
some day. Alreaay there are three flouring mills
In operation with an aggregate of nine run of
stone, a clothing mill, and several machine shops.
The “Cedar Rapids City” flouring mil and the
“Farmers,” are owned by H. G. Angle 8 Co., and
the “Valley Mills” by J. Black. The clothing mill
IS owned by Nicholas B. Brown &Co., who weave
excellent woolen blankets, satinet and other fab-
rcs. The extensive fumiture factory of J. A
Dewey is just above the flouring mills. Farther
up the river are the steam Variety Works of
Greene 8 Graves, through which we were con-
ducted by the Superintendent, S. L Dows. About
twenty-five men are employed In manufacturin

all kinds of wood and 1ron machinery, agricultura
tools, plows, gearing, castings and all kinds of
wrought Iron works, together with circular saw
mills, threshing machines, 8c. A saw mill for the
manufacture of all kinds of lumber and lath, Is
connected with this great establishment—great for
the interior of lowa. Another season it will prob-
ably give employment to at least fifty men. Most
excellent work Is done In it. Near It Is the door,
sash and blind factory of Alexander Hager, In
which we saw some finework. H. G. Angle 8 Co.
have a stave machine which turns out twelve
staves In a minute, taking the material from the

log. Three men are employed to tend Iit. Messrs.
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Rowley 8 Berkley are just starting an oil, soap
and candle factory.

One and a half miles from Cedar Rapids are
the Glasgow flouring mills, the property of John
P. Glass. Adjoining them are a saw mill and a
clothing mill. Still farther out of town are the
grist mill and distillery of Nicholas B. Brown 8
Brother. The mill is knownn by the name of
“Spring,” the water by which It is carried issuing
from the ground about a mile from the mill, and
directly by the road side, half way between Cedar
Rapids and Marion. The water bursts out of the
earth In enormous volumes, and sweeter water We
never drank. The only fault we find with It Is that,
In a cold winter day, It Is too warm.

There are seven brick kilns in and around
Cedar Rapids, and 30,000,000 brick were manu-
factured In 185/7. The finest brick blocks which
we have seen In the Interior of lowa are In this
city. The Franklin Block, which contains the dry
goods store of P. W. Earle 8 Co., the grocery of
J. S. Cook, the drug and book store of Emmett 8
Brubaker, the Cedar Valley Times office, Concert
Hall, an extensive Book Bindery, 8c., Isa splendid
structure, and would be an ornament to any of our
cities on the river. Carpenter’s Block Is also a fine
structure, containing the wholesale grocery stores
of Alvin C. Keyes and Walter B. Mack. These
stores are more than a hundred feet deep, three
stories high and filled from bottom to top. Ely’s
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GO GIT KR TUB STEALITT ! !
|oaded with Goods for
D. B. KEYS,

HO woulJ announce to tha Inhabitants of
Re”oo and adjoining eountica that ha is
- gam In bis old barinw, and thaf be Is now open-
ing and will keep conflnntlj on hand tbe large*
and beat aaaorimeot of (roods ever bnxigbl to tbs
town of Vinton, comprising everything In the

line of

Dry Goods, Groceries, Hardware,
Queeosware, Notions, io.,

Of every variety, style end quality, which be
will sell for Caah LOW ZB t*an'gooda bara
ever been sold before in the County.

A very large lot of Gothing and Booti and
Shoes, to be sold at a tri/is abort cost.

jarCuh paid tor bidoe

D. B. RETS.

Vinton, Jnne 12, 186S. (3 37-tf]

N. B.—Those indebted to D. B. Keys nod in
S. E. ftciih A Co., muit call and settle tbeir ac-
counts, either by cash or note, immsduUsly, or
they will be left in the hands of a proper offioer
for collection.

CALLAT CROISF ’S(N EW SHOP.
fi

( rosby’s Wagons!

THE GREATEST IMPROVEMENT

Or THE AGE !!

Eclipses Steamboats, Locomotivest and
Telegraphs !
For which capital tod the united effort* of Sam and

John he v« failed In effecting—* rallabla
communication bet**«» Europe

CROSBY WITH RIS WAGONS

HAS COmH'TED THE

Atlantic with the Pacific

And caused the prospector* of the Alr-Lin«
to despair of building it, while they
are a schbstitctk,

And made the Chicago, lowa A Nebraska,
acek winter quarters at Lisbon.

Then Wagone may ba had of CRO5BT

| y Old Wagon« taken in exchange, and for eele
low Horace and Ole* SHOD at *11 Umal. aod ot>00
reasonable tarma

Coro, Wheat Flour, or good NoUa Ukao. and Kona/
will not be refilled #

PIKE'S PEAR HEV—ba aora aideall, u It wni Sara

the tame effect oo the pocket m BraodroaHV PIIU 4aaa
on the eyetfm.

RECOMMENDATION,

5> .
KWI’. ﬂ 9 Ei%ai?t(@— oqCa I’r(::‘ael'éﬂg)cafct% ]|E|\éu
chatM a wafoo of joa for tha purpose ot a trip ecrt>
the Ptaln* ; aod | diem It doa to yoa to iuta that a
yoor reproecntatlom to ma wara MterelJfy aod atrlet
true  The Wafoo cama tha eollra trip without oea
lo* the atlfhuat repaire In fact Ilu aow retardad i
one of the bait pat up vagoni la tha country
You are at liberty to make *ucj> uaa of thi* aoU i
you may deem fit. W. R. HARRISON.

rrhirla Bibkdatbin Goin Bl Mal* ai

TRA YELLING.

CHANGE OFP TIME

Chicago, lowa, & Nebraska R, R,
OPEN TO LISBON.

NpaO afUv Wedoa”iav, L>wemMr 1, 1EIW, uotil far-
ther aotira, traia* wdl ruo *« follows

Leave Clinton at.......ccceeevevennne. * ....9.00 AM
Arri*e ¢l Lisbon at..... 3.00 P M
Leave Lisbon at.... .. ., Lo, 1,00 M
Arrive at Cliuloo »1 s 6,U) P M

Ceeaeettog *rlb tbroegb ireio* for Clurago over the

Xliaa Ur I.laa of ike Galeae A Chkage | alee
MaHreed.

At DeWitt with *tegv* f* Dewoport, Ma”uoketa. At
Yankee Rod with ru,-et for Torooto. Onion Grove *tlb

iU|«i lor Tiploo At MerhamcMViile, vilh for
ANAMOSA, MT. VERNON, MARION,
Cedar Rapids?

IVaiee, "(«r/eo? C*tmr FmfU, ft. /AeAgt,
M » * *> Ft. />vnetM<t. *etraH/ */1# e,
Hiour City.

FREIGHT TRAINS LEAVE DUTY.

Tbe shortest, cheapest aod moat eipeditiour mute be-
twee”Xblcagr» and central lows», it beieg only 13d mile*
froaj® iicago to the Mi**iaajppi River, and iheoca directly
Into the Interior of lowa.

Ticket* for eaie at tbe offl of the Western Stag* Com
pane, Ce«l*i Rapid*.

Ao Agvot «ill bo at the Depot lo Fulton to receive all
Elaggagw foT Clinton or the Road, which will be conveyed
aero*» tha River free of ebanre

M. SMITH, Lo* k 9openoleodenL

J W Ha*, Ceuerml Freight A~ent.

Clinton, lowa, Nor. 27th, 135H. d,33t

and after Monday, May 10th 1858, end anti! far-

ther notice, tram™* will leave low% City daily, for Mue-

caune Davenrport, Rock Uland and Chicago (Sandava ex-
cepted) U follow*

Liere* at. ... — ........ .6J5 au, *sd 2,10 r 1
Tram* will leave Muacatme u follow*

lat—ETrpreu at . e 9,55 x 1

20— s 715r *

Train* leave—Colucobu* City *t ......... 2,00r
Train» arrive *t lowa City daily, 2ond*y* excepted, a*

follow*

Lxprea* . e 1,00, axd 1140 r w

Moecnhoe, 1170 a w$ I0fk

Davenport, M  Weat, o 8,36 a m6<30r 1

The evening train atop» one hour at Davenport for eop-
VI,

P Ail trains out of Davenport will male connection! with
Musratine and low% City.

The Pa**enger Train connect* at Davenport with the
Rock Island A Chicago Trams. The evenrng traio *>p*
one hoar Ln Davenport for fan per,

Paeseager* are mnmded of the neceaalty r* ginn* <€~
tmet direction a* to the destination of their raghag*—eJ*
to nrocare tickeiv before taking their seat» in the car*

d.2atf A. DAY, Snpmntendft

DUBUQUE WESTERN RAILROAD.

EGCLLK TRJAN'S will be run upon thi* Road, In
connection with the Dabuque and Paci2c R. R.
Leaving Parley Junction.............. 10.30 A- M
Arrive at Rockville Station..........ccceeeens NMOA M
near Sand Spnoge (end of road;, 11.30 A. M
A7T«* *00* rail™*
Leave* Sand SpPring.....c.. 145P IS
Arrive at Rockwille Stadoo ......ccccocviveriennnne. 200 P M
Farley Jonctieo... a-on P **

Railroads were just being constructed in 1858, The covered wagon,

stagecoach, wagon, and
and communication.

buggy were the chief means of transportalion



Notice, Notice! Notice!!

*TMIE Subscriber, desirous of a chaDgo in bis
JL business,offers for sale at bis Store on Wash-

ington street 2d door from the Poet Office, his en-
tire stock of

BOUTS AND SHOES,

)T every description at Great Bargain*.
Men’s Th k Kip A C'f Boots from $2,50 to $4,50

Ho *“ “ “ Shots AGaiters 1,25 to 2,75
Women’s Calf, Morocco, Kid, Con-

gress A Gaiter Boots, 1,00 to 1,75
Bovi? Th’k Kip A C’f Boots, 1,25 to 2,75

Children’s and jMisses* Shoes and
Boots, 0,25 to 1,25

Other kinds of work in proportion.

N. B.—Last Call-—All accounts dne the sub-
scriber not settled before the first of January next
will be left in the bands of an Attorney for col-
lection. No Mistake.

_ S. D. REDFIELD.
Vinton, Oct. 30, *63. [v4n37If.]

Millinery A Dress Making.

S. L. M. HOKE Respectfully an-
ounces to the I>adiesof Vinton and vicin-

p*e has opened the Millinery business on

Jefferson Street, adjoining D. C. Spaulding*«

»noe Store, and that she hoe just returned from
Chicago with a full stock of

MILLINERY k FANCY GOQDS,

nnd will keen con?tantl] mp{olitd with whatever
the market demands. Also the

tLA.73©7 ?2JL533© Q/VCLSO.

By a system of fairdealing and strict attention
to the wants of her customer?, she hopes to merit
ond receive the patronage of this community,
which she cordially solicits.

Vinton, Oct. 16,1368. tf

Shields

VINTON,

House

IOWA.

THANKFUL for the many evidences of its
popularity in the way of patronage hither-
to bestowed by the travelling public upon his
house, and determined to merit its continuance,
the subscriber takes pleasure in soying to his old
friends in particular nnd the public generally,
that ho has lately expended therein and thereon,
in fixtures, furniture and adornments, no incon-
siderable amount of money : hoping thereby to
add still further to its attractiveness.

Ilis table will at all times be furnished with
tho best that can be procured in the market, and
in addition, attentive waiter? will always be in
readiness tc supply the necessities of guests.—
Hie highly finished parlors and sleeping apart-
ments arc also neatly furnished, commodious
nnd well ventilated : in fact they cannot well
be surpassed for beauty of appearance, com/ort
or convenience, by those of any other house In
Central lowa

The establishment is also provided with ora-
plc stable-room, pure water and horsc-fccd in
great abundance, together with trusty and expe-
rienced hostler? to attend upon that branch of his
business; in short no pains have been spared to
make tho Shields House one of tho best Ho-
tels in this section of the State.

*JOHN I1.SHIELDS.

Vinton, Aug. 20, 1856. [v2n3)yl]

HOTELS

E>lr IKK HOUSE, CfcLMK IMPID*».

. T COVILL, oo, PROPRIETOR.
VING Dosed this well known *uod for a term of
>*0pra. beg lew»* to call wtUnlioD of Ib* public to

Ib* lad ILal be t* i.repwred lo furm«h the beat ac-

commodation# to traveleri and otbar*.

flood accommodation for team#, attached to the_ Hold.
Cedar Kapida, Jao.-I, 1S6U. 7*18tt

OKEENE>S HOTEL., CEDAK KAPIDS.

rpilE uudenigoad barm; lewscfl thia t|*acioua Hotel, d«-
ngo faroishiog, fitting and keepiog it *» a ttralclwii
Hotel. Tbe bou.'r is ceutrmlly located, aod contain* an
unnaual number of priratt parlora. with large aod wall
aenUJauUd sleeping room*. e
The propneton* flatter tbauiaeltca that, with tbe faeUi-
ties for obtaimn” «applies from th® Eoat, and their cou-
atant effort* to please, they *«U b# able to meet theeapec-
UUooa of thoae who ma> faror thorn with a rail.
Iq eoooectioo with the Hotel Mta large and eommodioue
Stable. 0.38,t/ * ARJUNGTON

OIK IliOLSK, ( EDAIt KAPIDS.

#/. «L'"."V.VETT, rroyrittor.

_ I'dJer f Maker A IV« Bank
rpiiK undivided penonal attention of tbe Proprietor

oiren to tbe patrooe of thia Houae. aod from manf
vrwra of eaperieoce in catering for the public, he ieeU fully
conrtd-ntof giving entire aatuiacboo. All kioda of game
_aueh aa Duck, Prairie Chicken#, Kreab Kiab, etc.,—willt-c
eerred in th* beat oiaoner duriOK their *ea**u, an-! at all
Homr$ of the JJay and Right. 6,48tf

KAPIDS HOTEL, ('"EDAK K4P1D™*.

/pU E aubscriber and former Proprietor ha* ju»t refitted
and refurmabed the old aland and la now prepared to
furnish travelers aod bonnier* with tli* beat ot wccoinmo.
datioua. GOOD STABLING attached to the bouar
6,6if J  TKU AHI

PALMKK HOUSE,SOLON, IOU (

T HIS Houae »«situated midway between Cedar Kapida,
and lowa City—D new furnished—and baa ampl* »ta-

bling. » . ee If rat«.

PAHK UOLSE, IOWA CITV,IOWA.

HIS large and commodiou* Hotel haa bcco leased b

the Proprietor, thoroughly repaired and ranovated,
neatly furmabed throughout iu the best tuauoer, with
Spnog Beda, and lighted with Gas. No paio# will be
,J»are ' to make tbe '“Park Houae,” the “ A,/ So. 1 Houae
of the City—it being much tho largest, and nleaaaoUy
situated inacentral location, on the corner of Jeneraon aod
Dubuque ata., oear City Park, with comfortable accommo-
tions for Two Hundred Gueat*. Tenna—In conformity to

tbe “ Timea." ] ]
Good aod Capaciout SUblIO_? attached to tho House.
J. TRUSDELL, Proprietor.

Formerly of tbe "Truadell Iloure.”
lowa City, No*., I*fi7. ~,3If

Hilliard Saloon and Hentaurant.

J. L. PEAK, PKOPKIKTOK.
Ifmdrr Coryenler’t Block, Cor. Commercialif i.04 .« Sit, |
itdor JHmpidO* ioua.

The Largest WholesalealiT Retail

%

IN CENTRAL IOWA

A C. KEYES, bos recently purchased in the
e St. LMuis and New lork Markets, an
amount of GROCERIES uncqualed in extent in
this portion of tbe West. His Stock, when com-
pleted by the arrival of the next boat, will con
net, in part, of

130 packages Raw and Refined Sugnri.

30 %  Molasses and Syrups,
f4 “  Rio and ofher Coffees.
60 u  Green and Black Tcuij.
n " Plug Tobacco.

17 barrels Cut Tobacco.

15 u  Vinegar.

25 d«*.  Palils.

22 u  Eastern Brooms.

20 “ Bottles Ink.

20 packsgos Starch.

37 o Soap.

20 “ Candles.

32 M  Saleratus.

13 11 Bi. Car. and Sal Soda.
13 *  Cream Tartar.

3 ¢ 2130 Ib.) Indigo.

1 " (70 Ib.) Nutmeg?.

‘0 “  Cap, letter, aod Note Paper.
65 bundle* Wrapping Paper.

Hotels, the stagecoach stop, and the livery stable, were important to
the land-seeker; the traveling salesman, anhd the Itinerant newspaper

editor.



UEO. GREENE, |
Wn. GREENE, J

StaBSEIS.

J.C.TRAER.
|J. W. TRAER,

[TSUSIS & s®.

COLLECTORS AND GENERAL AGENTS,

GRERNEa WEARK,....
GREENE, WEARS A BENTON,

Council BI'ft, lown.
GREENE, WEARB A CO., Fort Dodge, lowa.

Od.r Rjpldr, low*.
GREEN K, WEARBA RICE. Ft Dcxnoine, lowa.

loua.

GREENE, WEARE, GRAVES a 00.,

___Siout City. Towa.
OREENE, WEARE AGREENE. Mariun, lowa.
GREENE, TRAER A McCLURE.

Cedar Fall#, lowa.

Vinton,

LAND WARRANTS BOUGHT, SOLD AND LOCATED ; TAXES PAID, AND REAL ESTATE
BOUGHT AND SOLD.

XHOTES *nd Bills collected, and proceeds promptly remitted to any port of the United Stilt«, at
current rate* of Exchange; Interest paid on special deposits ; Bills of Exchange on all the princi-
pal cities bought and sold ; Loans effected on good security ; Titles examined and oonreyancing cor-
rectly and prxxnptly attended to; Notes bought and money loaned.

KETCHHi. HOWFA CO., New Tort.
PEOPLE'S BANK. New York

CASHIER MECHANICS'BANK. New York,

Vinfon, Apnl 1, 1857.

BANKERS OF IOWA.

E IF. CLARKA BROTHERS, St. Louit. Mo.
L UCAS A SIMMONS, if i
DARB YA BARKSDALE, ft if
BANK OF ELGIN. Elgin. IU.

EXCHANGE BANK. Chicago, IU.
[v3nllyl]

Banker Greene did business in many lowa towns.

i

Cornell College at Mount Vernon in 1875.

vi UNL1Fto



Western College had professor of agriculture before 1858,

The school for the blind was under construction in 1858



JOHN A. HITE,
irSTU'E ‘IF THE PEACE, Wyoming,
| JonM Cuuntv, lows, will attend lo any
huimrw entrusts! to bu C.'rf. Refer to Hon.

Minn, Anomow. P E- BUkew'ec. P.
M.ud Bronson L. Co., Wyoming. »

: MKH IRK,
DHY.SICI\N AND SURGEON, An*
|  mox, «ill atWn-1 p«nctu\llv and promptly
to »1 bu'inrti in Io™* line nf hi* profession-
"ffi « in Fidlier’» Hrlek Block, right hand
door. Second Floor.

V.>\\ IN I'i. AKKSLF.K,

PHYSICIAN AND SUItf"KON; OFFICE
| Onedwort ill of the Fisher llooac, Mam
e[reci, AnMiioo. Jone« countv, low». A
lair, uf profeViioual patronage i* respectfully
»ninilrd. r3-\J

J. M. HIM =ITT,

PHYSICIAN AND SURGEON, Ana
mi.-»  OITu». Iin the Bnek, opposite- tlic
Piihcr t(oli>c. v3-11

J. J VN,

\ Rill ITKCT AND BUIE DF.R,
' * Anamosa, Jour;* (V»..town  Shop, Main
“reel, oppositel 1/Ocke’s Citilt Store." % —1»

1RRNEAI S IH UK.H,

VJADDLFR AND HARNESS MAKER,
11 —Shopou Main »(reel nett to Bcnnclf*
‘egvert,—i.u miMtinth on hand and for aile
"Hthe laioat style* of Saddlery and Himevi"
B* mode, as well a* other article* in his line
hhin*/e  Article« mide to order or re
kwirel *i t|,e sburtest uolice. Prices to suit
times. v3—=2S

JOHN KINNEY, O.B. M.»

rP»E SUBSCRIBER HAS ON HAND
1 Vferal Cap«and Sill?, Qnoitu ind Lcotila
£ diipoAf of, Mid on very reasonable terms.

cloat Mid Rubble Masonry dope in Rood
*TU uid on abort notice. PICASC call and
,U «rioe specimens on Main Street opposite

Miller’s Drug Stgtc. \ 3-6

K//t OrsTl K 1IKITC »1KN,
s CONSTANTLY on hand a large
aul well selected assortment of Stove*,

Tinware, and everything that may

y rcMUirrd in llia line. Give Imni a c
eta see for jouraelve*

\tFACHEHNL_% IN &(E

opposite the «Waverly » °
-ou{:;Vsnlowa H eh”en . Mi

WaWubed li»m<elf tu thls pree *x
constantly on hand and lot
Wi needed in hin Vm* of b«* f1

business Cariis.

a 1. n’INTOSH, T. J. DDDLET.

MEINTOSII A DUDLEY,
«mam al EAW *c.,

(Wax Rapida,....cccccveeveeiiiiiiinenieeniie i lowa.

JAMES A. GUTHRIE,
HOTARY PUBLIC AND AGENT,

Hampton, Franklin Co., lowa.

IWL attcDd to the execution of Convex

ooe*. Examination of Titles, and the
hjmeot of Tslei.

0. 0 BEKX

RACTITIONER of Medicine and Surgery
P in Vinton and rurroundiDg country.

Dsi. 9. 1868. [4 BM f]

JAMST. MEIRMK

GENERAL AGENT,

Hampton, Franklin Co., lowa.

ARTICULAR attention givco to entry of

Lands and the jument of Taaca fur noo-
wdenti.

J 8MITH, M. D,

PYS1CIAN A SURGEON, Vinton, lowa,
rc/p'ctfi/lly offer? bis professional service?

BUSINESS CARDS.

JONES COUNTY.

. HUBER. - COUNTY JUD I
. U E. Cutler, - Prosecuting Attor
L T. Mellett, C
F. 8. McKean, Treasurer and Recoi
N. 3. Noble. - - 8h» o
George Welch, - Count? Sum -
John E Loxejoy, . - 11 Aase *
T. McNallay, - - Drainage Cor "
It WfkutLetDore, e - - County ” -
M. Il. Byerly, e Con *

MANN it PFKT,

IGENERAL LAND AGENTS. A
* T nera at Law and Notaries Pnblic, i j
oy>s&, Jooes Co., lowa. Particular attcr i
paid to buying and selling Real Estate, J
wvoining LLlca thereof, locating and so. ;
latnd WarranU* paring Taiea, Ac® Co
lion of Debts in anr part of the State, an- |
kinds of conveyancing. ?2-

CUTLER Il STACY,
t. emit, jfo. a 1T (
ATTORNIES AND COUNSELLC
- V. at-Law, Anamoaa, lowa. Office f
Ohnrtead A Perfect*« Store Collection* r t
on liberal term«- 5 v2-

DAVID HARPER,

ATTORNEY-AT-LAW AND SOI
-a. itor in Chancery; Office, comer of 1*
snd lowi street«, Anamnw. Will practi< »
thedifferant courts in the Stale; collect di
attend to the purchase and sale ¢( real es e
tod all other bosinea* in the line of bis

_tothe citizens of this placa and surroundingeatioo. (3%

twintry.

Office —fur the present—at Plummer's Drug
Store.

Vinton, June 2\ 1SJ3. [4-19-tf]

DR. P. C. BRANCH,

BN T AL SUUt;EON. bn*

th*ed his office f“ the .Sum

mer, nnd ‘will only oj<*m*e, hv prt

zioud appointmental hi* re?id«nc*,

It mile? south ?e>t from town : or, at that of bis
patron*, according to their convenience.

P 8 —Persons living ut a distance would ilo

ogll to write a few daya Ufure coining, fur bis
mr\ice?.

Vinton, Jun~ 6, 181\ {4-18-tf]

DAIJEL CONNELL, Jr,
ANI> Ag.-nr, |ire In*. Agent, Notary Public,

and J il'lice of the Pinen, lhickin/hoin, fa

PRATT R.SKINNER,

PURVEYOR. NOTARY PUBLIC / 1
O Lsxd Agent, Aaamoas, Jone? Co. He
eeled and purvlixse LanrL, and locate | 1
Warrants, by personal examinatjon, attcr '
paying taxes, conveyancing, eiaoaining t »
Ae. All Locations o/ Und warranted a
factor?. 72-

QK w riiLn. a a hai

FIELD it HADLEY,
ttomoys and Counsellor* at Law and
- ur * Public. Ansmosa, Jones (ou °
Inw*  Will practice in the several Court
the Suites. Particular attention paid to oo
ting, conreraneeing, eiaminior UtJea and
mg Of taxes-  v340tf

JOHN Il. PW ERS,
~ATTORNEY AND COUNSELOR

oa cruiit) , lok«u. All tufinrrs entru-fed to bi ‘1 Law and Notary Pnblic, Delhi,

are ex cut*) witbGdvlity and dispa'‘ch.
Miy 20, 13; S. [4-16-1r]

eare County, lowa. Collectina mod«
m>st reasonable lerma. 3n4*-

Business cards appeared on the front page of lowa newspapers.
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LINN COUNTY

». L. FOLI.Ot H.

I [n>t'LD announce to h*s old friaxuiJ and patrons that
be Lai made gr*ai addiUOD« to bis shop daring the
a’seaeon, and j 00* better prepared th-io ever to rnane

Y>

factor«

IREAKIJNG. CBOSM N «

PLO WS,

4cCORN

a rbraper, better, and more eipeditiou« rate, than at
of ether shop id Lioo county. Th©*« Plow« baft green
They are of em»! draft, run true,
ndare cade of tbe eery be*t material poa«lble to be ob-
uoed. And tbe fact that r WARRANT ALL MV WORK,
boold be iOfRiaent inducement for firmer* to tny my

niveraai «atijfvtico.

low* in preference to tboee manufactured at.road.

Ny facilities for ot taming material, and tie capacity of
iy machinery, enable* me to .to large and heavy jobii of

, U descriptions.

All kind* of repairing »ill be done an rpeedilj ae poaal*
«* and particular attention will be green to that clans of

ork In point of time

BLaClISKJTHING. id ail aa brioche«, will receive
rompt attention, and work will be performed in a man
er « bicb cannot fail to pee satisfaction.

Thankful for the eere liberal patronage received during
ie paat year, | would re«pectfolle aolmt a conUouancw

f ibe *aloe from farmer» and dealer« m Lion and tbe ad*

»iniog nountiea.
All kind, of BRASS CASTINGS dooe with neatn©«*
7*Pt9. 1tt*. Vi ki

GARDEN SEEDS.

McAFEF, 4 BIXBY.

+t TOD want OOOD FII8H OARDEN 811D8.

|. ralawd last year In Ihla Coanty from the Aneet erge

tablta of the Weal call at the Store of McAfee S

I*by  They haee an assortment and caa tupply

calm at fair ratoa. tf
Ior Marten, March fld 1M .

. Seed Wheat.

| ritVCgoac very floe Canada Fife Spring Wheat,

" 8 the [row* of 1\V which | offer to the fitrruri of
»0n or any other. ld}ﬁﬁl?/ Thla wheal «offered lea«
Pmrmt And «cab la«t la.van than v>7 obthee , on&

I0U* of thlj wbvat will yield more flour, than the aame

f HI m*aol°f«n7 »heat that | have_an){ kooweledge of,
>e floor alio, far superior In quality te flour madé from

f?fﬂ ny of th©other varieties of hard wheat Alao Canada
ilAl lub and Rio Grand wheat fori wed

N. bowman,

M
V**  Marlon March, 10, 1*69 Imo«

lii
0 WASSON fc OBEH,

MY.SIUAX.S and O[»ermhng Surgeon« J.*.

AN . ih>IrIC A1 )r*1,,"ckhawk County,
\tg * J,r Fr*fi*ional
u *acc anisurrounding country.

UPTw".v. May, 1658,

lowa,

[4-U-yl]

A 8%/5JJISYOUNG A B8MYTII7
. “"1 COUNSELORS <( b .,

nr;t>n>Linn County, lowa.

ilj 8 [vanl2yl]
»8BELL, HUBBARD k STEPHENS,

Ap "W AN > COLLECTION OFFICE,

sk Coimyr,” | vanlOyl] lowa.
MAMES wWOOD,

NOTARY PUBLIC
A*I> OENERAL AGENT,

VATD 70, 2DV7JL.

Mn‘u";mll!zﬁ k@\gy.ng «

cU*,.«i  r*Mnc?« ciitimted to him, prompt
) and n; rcufcnablc rate*?.
JOHN A BILLS,
) ,1» * I"Clock.. Wauhe., Jew A
w0 Py-U T TLEY S\ D)

ten-
an vices to the citizens of

...rr A, J. Twogood A C»*» Pnok.

FURNITURE!!

The only establishment in (own where ererjlhing

in the lino of

CABINET-WARE,

is kept, and fomirbed to order at short notice.

ELLIS & KILE.

AVING purchased the etock of Fnmiforo
formerly owned by Gerberich A Gilliard

and having recently made extensive additio

thereto, and also having a thorough knowledge
of the business, would inform the public that

akllje i %;cg]pw prepared to furobb every style and

(sfflaciES, lumiLgs,

BEDSTEADS, BUREAUS,

SiMSYy 80*48,

— ALSO—
Paxior Pocking Cliain—Spring Seat—Cherry,
A and Mahogany j Cottage Ixiun*
ges; Crib A Willow Cradle?,

Cabs,Mattrc??e? of all
descriptions.

All of which will be sold for CASH a? LOW
as enn be bought west of lowa City. All uoik
made to order warranted.

COFFINS made, and funeral* attended when
desired.

Persons wanting an
well to give them a ca
to purchase.

thin}g in their line willdo
| before going clscwhbeic

Thankful for pa«t favors, they would solicit a
continuance of patronage.

ELLIS A KILE.

Vinton, July 81, 1968. fv4021-ly.]

REMOVAL.

BOOK STORE

Is removed to his new building, two doors west of
the Iremont House where ho will be found ready
to wait on all who may favor him with a call.

Rochester Nurseries|

T
A, FROST 4 ~0O .f pROPHfrroHS,

\'\' Tt htw b#«n »hoWO « Tnritty of fruit grow» on Ch#
11t tr»rfl from ihli uurMry, which w«r» o»t ibis

Dft & ring, *nd 1» irevi only lhrr« yc»r» J

fruit e from do»rf I/ttf «od for «nc »ud

escrl o>»oy of o<r «iiuro orchard«

iTouls« Boon®© d© Jrr«©y. which Id very lirj

&*i4d lob« a very superiorvariety Thr.©«p*«

4*VI«e were » « « «liO»n ca led the Velio' Bell

Uuohwv« of OlJ©nburfl*. and V»odav»r. alt

rpocicn«n«. Hy the proc««Ulng-a of the IlIfit>T*

Growcra' Auoclation, thtft TftFItUd »r< recomroel

t> poioeating alJ the requisite« for tht north we«l

mer, they baiog much hardier than any other. Mraar«

Hill <A brown, an soliciting order« 1In Lion County

Alao a large variety of ornamental Ir«««. «brub«. Ac
Qrder« may be MO with Mr. P. R Hartwall or at ihla

cfBoo. e Dec. 18.16». If.

Ti » pe|

MACHINERY.

EXTENSIVE

MANUFACTURING WORKS!
GREENE & GRAVES'

CEDAR RAPIDS8

Variety Steam W *orkn 11

E Proprietor* of tbo above Work’ would respectful-

ly caii the altaouon of thv public to lha that

they are now prepared to

YTAM m r i

all tier*« or

"Wood and Iron Machinery,
AGRICULTURAL TOOLS.

Mill frona, Gearing*, Shartiny,
OASTINOB,

h k

1>b ALL Kl«bS OF
WROUGHT IRON WORK!!

We har* afull and complete
FOINORV UOOJt AND PATTERN SHOP,

With a large aux»l well

8ELECTED LnT OF PATTERN'S,
And are prepared to make patterns for new and Old work.

We have a Itrg*

WecU filled with

KSOINE LA THES.
IRON PLANERS,
SCREW and
BOLT CUTTERS

And ail Lbe oeewasary machinery for fitttog up

WORK IN THE BEST STYLES.

We have a large Wood tihop, to vhieh we are prepared lo
do all kio<la of wood work for

MACHINERY OR TOOLS

We have a
HLACKS8.UITHIV, AND PLOW SHOP,

For all kind« of Wrought Iron Work. We have e larg*

SA'W MILL,

For the maoafactur* of a!’” kind« of

LUMBER, SHINGLES. LATH AND PICKrre.

Aud are preparad to aaw custom 10??, upon the best terms.
We are now manufacturing th<

PEORI -A PLOWS

Which we will waraaot to our customer*, 1 gtye onUr*
satisfaction, or return.

lo abort, w# have all kinds of FARMING UTENSILS.

M>WEBE, and HAUKOWS, and cao do allLID « of Casi
iog U order. We have a!»0 on band two

TWBJYTI*"POI B HOBHR PQB i B AV*

nr %*»<*

Advertisements, large and small, filled the pages of the flourishing lowa newspapers

IN Jesse Clements time.



Limy, 1Twp d¥-Bdaxe
SHe

s o Sades.

1 00D HOR6F5 AND CARRIAGES TO LtT. it *1
V houre and od rrtliQibli uto» Horif* for e

iod (ictuinfi FFTER HOPPAL'GW.
Marloo, lo«a, F«¥ W, 163% vI*0S-Ij

C A R R 1
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The horse and wagon (or stagecoach) had not been displaced by the Iron Horse
(|:r(1) mlé??n it Livery stables and blacksmiths were a common necessity in every lowa

DUBUQUE SOUTH-WESTERN RAILROAD.

Line of Road.—Farley, (Z3 m W. Dubuque,) la., to Cedar Rapids, la.. A /Gm*
Sidings and other track. 225 miles. (Gauge, 4 feet 8J inches.  Rail, (average,) 45 Ibs.

Rolling Stock.—Locomotive engines, 4. Cars—passenger, 2; baggage, mall,
and express, 4 ; and freight, (bax, 47 ; cattle, G, and platform, 24,) T7—total revenue cars*
83 Also, 9 SEIVice Cars.

Operations for the year ended December 31, 18/0—Trains (mixed) run, 137-
720 miles; passengers carried, 38408; and freight mowved, 53/0G tors. Qoss-
earnings—passenger, $48,217.90; frelght $141,006.60; mail, $2,853.10; and other*
$138 —total, $]92,C~IBGG Operating expenses, repairs, etc., including taxes,.

$132.206.75.  Net revenue, $00,099.91 Interest on bonds, $38,132.50; other payments
from income, $,431 ; surplusto credit, $10536.41.

General Balances. —Capital stock (common, $000,000, and preferred, $669,137,)
$1,109,137 ; funded debt—ist mortgage preferred 7 per cent bonds, dated July 1, 1800,
and due Jul 1, 1883, $100,000; and 1st mortgage 7 per cent bonds dated October 1,
1863, and due October 1, 1883, $450,000—total. $539,500; other liabilities, $32,133.46 ;
balance, credit of income, $3007209. Per contra; Cost of road and rollln stock,
$1732,001.09 ; material and fuel, $7,332.97 ; other current assets, $9,43291 : and cash,
$21,384.98—total, $1,77/0,842.55.

Directors, (elected 2d Monday of February, 1871)>—Morris I\. Jesup, D. Willis
James, John Crcrar, Samuel A Strang, New-York City ; J. P. Farley, Dubuque, lowa.

J. P. Farley, President and Superintendent.............. Dubugue, lowne.

Treax. ticSec.—D. A McKinley..... uque, In.  Master Machinist—J, M Williamsop, ~ Farle
liocul Master—P. Cunnlngﬁyam D‘f—bar Transfer Ayts.—M. K Jesup New-Y Orkeél

Principal Office and Address ............... Locust street, Dubuque, lova.
Transfer Office..............cccooeeeeeiiiienne, No. 12 Pine street, New York Gity.

Poor’s Manual of the Railroads of the United Slates 1871-72.
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Block i1s well built, and the dry goods store of
Edwin E. Leach &Wood isvery finre. R C. Rock
has a haraware store near It 115 feet deep. The
block In which the bank of Messrs. Elinu Baker &
Co., and the law office of E. N. Bates, 8c. are
located, Is substantial and attractive. The same IS
true of the block which contains the dry goods
store of W. W. Smith &Cao., the banking house of
George Greene, Merritt & Co., and Greene's
Hotel. The hotel Is kept by Farrington & Fay,
and 1s much the largest and best in the place.
There are three other public houses here, the Em:-
pire, Our House, and the Rapids Hotel.

Lawson Daniels & Co., have a large Variety
Store, which, when It was built five years ago, was
the wonder of the place. H. G. Angle &Co. gen-
eral commission and forwarding merchants and
agents for Kanawha Salt, and Louisville water
lime, are doing a thrifty business. Mr. Angle has
all the energy, activity and enthusiasm of a true
Western man. There are many other business
houses which are deserving of notice, but the de-
tails may become too dry. One fire brick block
was put up last fall. Nearly one hundred awelling
houses have also been erected since last spring.
Three or four of the churches are built of bric
and are neat and tasteful edifices. The Episcopal
church, which stands on the high grounds In the
eastern part of the city, In the suburb of the grove,
Is very romantically situated. The grounds In Its
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neighborhood are Inviting sites for private resi-
dences, and some of the ‘merchant princes’ are
building there. A mile or two further out Is the
palatial residence of Judge George Greene, Sur-
rounded with Its orchards and its nursery with
several thousands of fruit trees. We are glad to
see that the people of Linn county are turning
their attention to the cultivation of fruit. We met
at Marion yesterday, an old acguaintance who Is
connected with one of the famous Rochester
Nurseries, and were pleased to learn that the
people of Marion and Its vicinity are bound to
raise their own apples. This looks commendable.

The Union School House In Cedar Rapids Is
the best building of the kind that we have found
In the Cedar Valley. Prof. Humphrey, Its prin-
cipal, recently of the State University, has a repu-
tation as a teacher wide as the State. About two
hundred and fifty pupils are connected with the
school. There are also two or three select schools
In the place. The population of the city is a little
less than three thousand. Strange to say, It has
but one newspaper, the Cedar Valley Times—
That Is a vveekI%/ sheet, which has just been en-
larged to an eignt colunn paper. We have more
than once taken occasion to speak of the beauty
of 1ts mechanical execution and of the taste dis-
played In its selections. J. G. Davenport, publisher
and proprietor, Is an Industrious and enterprising

man, deserving of all the success he Is receiving.




LINN COUNTY 379

The streets of Cedar Rapids, like the principal
ones In Marion, are very wide and well laid out.
There Is an abundance of land “out West,” and
why should not streets be capacious? lowa
Avenue, on which Franklin Block, of which we
have spoken, stands, Is 120 feet wide. Commer-
cial Street, which Is ornamented with the other
blocks mentioned, I1s 100 feet wide. The same Is
the case with three or four other streets, and none
we believe are less than 80 feet.

Cedar Rapids was first settled in 1839.—Among
the pioneers, were John L. Shearer, P. W. Earle,
Alexander L Ely, Joseph Greene, Nicholas Brod-
head Brown, John Weare, and Lowell Daniels.
Most of these men are still living In this city or
county.

December 16

Through the politeness of Mr. J. M. Chambers,
the Secretary of the Linn County Agricultural
Society, and from other sources, we have been
enabled to collect some facts In regard to this
county, not devoid of Interest. This Is the second
county In Northern lowa In wealth, and the third
In population. In 1856 1t had 14,700 inhabitants
and 1t must now have upwards of 16,000. It has
720 square miles, and of Its 468,800 acres, 438,660
are assessed. The value of the land per acre as
assessed, Is $8.22; and the assessed value of the
%% 6townships, exclusive of town lots, is $3-
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The follomng table wll show the number and
value of the stock In this county:

Nunber. Average Value. Total.
Horses 5,872 $50.65 $297,452.27
Cattle 14,659 $12.75 $187,056.92
Mules 123 $55.56 $ 6,835.00
Sheep 5,853 $ 1.25 $ 7,348.34
Hogs 12,764 $ 1.92 $ 24,535.79

It Is gratifying to learn that the farmers and
mechanics of this county are doing much to create
a commendable spirit of emulation. The Agricul-
tural Society has purchased fifteen acres of land
between Marion and Cedar Rapids, to use as
Fair grounds, for which purpose they have been
fitted up. The Soclety Is in a flourishing condition,
and numbers more than two hundred members
The receipts at the last Fair were nearly five
hundred dollars. Improved stock Is much sought
after by the farmers. Many thorough bred horses
and cattle are already found In the county. We
saw some fine horses this morming in the Livery
Stable of Mr. Carscarden of Marion. Mr. J. S.
Wolf, of Cedar Rapids has a fine Black Hawk
Morgan; Henry Pence of Round Grove has a
short horn Durham bull and some cows of the
same breed; and William Cook of Marion has
also a bull of this breed. In a few years Linn
county Will be pretty thoroughly stocked with the
best breeds of horses and cattle. Next to Dubugue
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county In wealth, in Northern lowa now, we see
no reason why Linn county may not continue to be
so—There Is, we believe, no better land In lowa
than this part of the Cedar Valley, and the pro-
prietors of its soil have entered upon a noble career
of competition. Persons who attended the Fair
last fall speak of the display of mechanical skill
In highly eulogistic terms.

In Linn, as In Jones county, much attention Iis
paid to the cultivation of the Chinese Sugar Cane.
In Franklin township alone, 3700 gallons of syrup
were produced this year, and the aggregate
amount In the county must exceed 20,000 gallons!

The Wapsipinicon River and Buffalo Creek
water the northeast townships of Linn county and
the Cedar crosses the western and southern town-
ships. These streams, and their multitudinous
branches, fumish an abundance of water and of
water power. The Cedar Is skirted with excellent
timber, from two to five miles wide on either side.
Hard wood, such as oak, maple and walnut, Is
abundant. There Is, also an Immense quantity of
limestone along the course of this river, and It Is
of excellent quality.

There are several small villages in Linn county.
Of Mount Vernon, In the southeastern part we
have already spoken. Near It Is Lisbon, which IS
about half Its size. Center Point, in the north-
western part, has 200 inhabitants or more. Palo
and Grove are post office places In the western
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part, and Newark, St. Julien, Hoosler Grove and
lvanhoe In the southern part. Spring Creek and
Boulder are small places in the northern part.

The price of unimproved lands Is from six to
eight dollars per acre, and of farms, except In
choice districts, from ten to sixteen dollars. The
Chicago, lowa and Nebraska, and the Dubuque
Western Railroads will pass through this county,
and will materially raise the price of land. Per-
haps no inland county In the State has higher
promise than Linn.

GFEENE & HARVEY. Furniture! Furniture!

it raa
. . W ~W L***jLK BRT.MilL.
*“OLD CORNER STORE,
J J AV1JUST RECEIVED DIRECT FROM NEW YORK
larfa aaaortmsot of JOHNBOYCIE.»
FANCY AND STAPLE Car< l#wm Oar*»Jtr of tk#
Pool IHBro,

DRY GOODS’ iurtcf:tl’zDAR RAPIDS, |IOWA.
READY-MADE CLOTHING, "7 omesmsee

rtRsrrOte roR offices!

FI'RN ITURE FOR HALLS!
BOOtS § Shoes FI RNTTI RF. FOR LIHKAJUFSI
y FIRMTI R}t FOR DLNNI.VO ROO5fS !

ALvirCRE FOR CHAMBERS IN SUITS'
Burea», Tedles, Sdiaw

AND AN ASSORTMENT OF Secretary*, Wardrobe*.‘

W ardrobes. Cubboards.

Family Grocerlies, BEDSTE.WS, °

waici wa will »ru. at oiiatlt WORK A TO' LET STAMD8 CR|BS*
)
Reduced Prices,
Co Mu» fmrml»h»4 #e $k» »korl»»l mailt».
FOR READY PAY. Harlag prwcurad a  w aod splendid Hears*, b# will at-
Ut>drODY Tmi«IOKOdOOtOfth*Citr foAm»

om my »term.

or »Tt«T iFiacaimov m>ti to oaeia

And will pay CASH for BoMmi»mB Ra»l» rW Tab!» Lef for ooU.

WHEAT, CORN, OATS, POTATOES, I Highest Market Pries for all kioda of Lender sod
AND HIDES. Ip.r""ca Lasxciiaofa_ff)r Ejrniture. m .»r"ltf



Benton County

Vinton December 17th

Left Cedar Rapids this morning for Vinton, a
distance of twenty-five miles. On this route we
care once more In the range of the Western
Stage Company, whose line we patronize In pref-
erence to any other, because, thus far In our ex-
perience In lowa traveling, It Is the best. M.
Joseph Sharpe carries the mail on this route, and
takes passengers when he can find them stupid
enough to rice on his forbidding sleds and carts.
Last week we were obliged to go from Sand
Spring to Anamosa on one of his sleds—a West-
em patriarch of its family of vehicles. We had
cold mail bags for a seat; nothing but Ursa Major
to lean our back against, and paid our dollar and
a half for the twenty miles ride in this covered
carriage—covered by the blue concave through
which comets have recently, and from time Im
memorial, been punching holes. When Mr. Sharpe
runs coaches or sleds, or even carts, embracing
any of the elements of comfort, and charges any
price below robbers’ rates, we may patronize him
—when nothing better can be done.

The Western Stage Company runs well-cov-
ered hacks, when the sleighing, as, at this tine, Is




384 THE PALIMPSEST

poor, between Cedar Rapids and this place; and
as they keep none but supple horses, the traveler
gets over the ground as rapidly as he could ex-
pect with any thing short of steam. Some of the
way, today, where the roads were prime, the
steeds seemed to almost fly. As the day was warm
and we wished to see the country, we took a seat
beside Jehu, and kept It all the way. The country
IS beautiful, and the ride was exhilarating. In
crossing Bear Creek, into which the descent Is
decidedly declivitous, as there was a foot or more
of Ice on the shore, over which the wheels drop
suddenly down, the feat Is dangerous to outsiders.
The driver gave us due warning of the perils of
the plunge, and we grasped the iron railings at
our side with both hands. Suddenly, however, our
center of gravity advanced a fraction of a degree
northward, and we were suspended by the side
of the hack, our feet very near the water, and our
shawl In it—No bones were broken, and Bear
Creek did not seem greatly disturbed by the ad-
venture, notwithstanding It came very near con-
verting us Into a “stiff cold water-man.”

We find Vinton, the shire-town of Benton
county, most delightedly located on the south side
of the Cedar river. It has broad streets, very
wide, running at right angles and some of them
as level as a house floor. It was first settled In
1851. Among the pioneers were C. C. Charles,
John S. Tilford, and Dr. J. C. Traer. The last
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two are still living here. Mr. Tilford has a nursery
of ten or twenty thousand apple trees, most of
which will be ready for transplanting next spring.
His, we believe, Is the only nursery In the county,
and 1t will do very much toward supplying this
section with fruit. In a very few years, we pre-
sume, Benton county will produce all the apples
needed here.

Mr. Traer is a banker, and the local commis-
sioner of the Blind Asylum, which Is located here,
and the site of which we have visited. It Is half
a mile from the wvillage, on high ground, overlook-
Ing a wide extent of country. They embrace forty
acres generously donated by }. W. O. Webb, and
worth forty dollars per acre. The walls of the
building, which fronts the east, are already up.—
The whole length of the building wll be 220 feet;
the height from the basement to the top of the
dome, 115 feet; its depth 70 feet. The center or
main building—the part designed to be conpleted
at first—s 108 feet long, and Its height four stories
above the basement. The outside walls are to have
a front of dressed stone, the work being cran-
dalled, with beveled joints, and will have a ve
neat and rich appearance. The rear wall and ends
are to be of hammer-dressed stone. The building
stands on a plat of twelve acres, twenty rods In
front. The remainder of the land Is reserved for
gardens, orchards, 8c. The cost of the center
building,—now rising, will be about forty thou-
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sand dollars. It I1s to be heated by steam, and
lighted with gas.—Everything about It IS most
commodiously arranged. Dr. Traer visited the
asylums of several States In order to get the best
plan—His efforts are untiring, and lowa will ere
long have a model Asylum for the Blind.

The stone used In the building Is limestone, and
IS brought from a quarry three miles above the vil-
lage, and directly on the south bank of the Cedar.
In company with Dr. Traer we have visited the
spot, and find as good a quarry of the kind as we
have seen In these parts. The stone is of a very
light gray color, and makes a richer front, In our
estimation, than marble. The bank In which the
quarry Is found, Is fifty feet high, and stretches
for half a mile along the shore. The stone Is very
easy of transportation by water, and at this time
by land, the sledding from that point to the site
of the Asylum being good. There Is, doubtless,
stone enough In the quarry to build the Pompel
of the West. The nature of the stone may be
gathered from the fact that a cute Yankee picked
up one of our specimens at the Shields House,
and with his jackknife made a handsome pipe of
It In less than one hour. The pipe we have In our
possession, and having no other use for such a
domestic utensil, we shall, on our return to Du-
buque, keep It on exhibition In our editorial sanc-
tum—admittance one cent—children half price.

The population of Vinton is eleven or twelve
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hundred. It has about twenty stores, and some of
them, like Mr. P. Olmstead’s dry goods store, are
spacious and well filled. There are four wagon
shops In this place; five blacksmith shops; two
cabinet shops; a harness shop; two steam saw mlls;
an excellent flouring mill, the property of Taggart
& Brother; and a brick Court House of fair di-
mensions, In the center of a beautiful yard 260
feet square, and decorated with maple, cotton-
wood, locust, willow, hickory, cedar and cherry
trees. A high fence, with turned posts and pickets,
the best In this part of the country—surrounds the
court yard—showing much taste on the part of

somebodly.

The Odd Fellows and Free Masons have each
a hall, and the Baptists and New School Presby-
terians have neat little brick churches. The Old
School Presbyterians and United Brethren also
have church edifices. The Methodists have a
large congregation meeting at present, In the Court
House. There are one or two other religious so-
cleties In the place.

Vinton has two weekly newspapers—the Eagle
and Democrat. We found Mr. \V. W. Hanford
of the former, and Mr. Fowler of the latter, busy
at the case, acting the double part of publlshers
and compositors. They are both industrious and
worthy men, and are deserving of liberal support
from the “sovereigns” of the county. The editor

of the Eagle 1s Thomas Drummond, Esg., a young
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man of decided talents and sharp points In his
character. He was a member of the last General
Assembly, he being In the Lower House, where he
made his mark. His career may be like that of
some other young men. Richelieu was Secretary
of State at thirty-one. Bolingbroke and Pitt were
ministers almost as soon as they were men. Pascal
was an author at sixteen and John Quincy Adams
held a place of honor at about the same age.
Spurgeon, at twenty-five, draws the largest con-
gregation of any man of any profession In
Christendom. One of the greatest battles of
modern times, that of Lepanto, was won by Don
John, of Austria, at the age of twenty-five. Gaston
de Foix was a victor on the plains of Ravenna, at
twenty-two. The field Is as wide now as It ever
was for the display of genius and prowess on the
part of young men.

Vinton has two hotels, Shields’s and the Fre-
mont House. We have never found kinder people
In a public house, than Mr. and Mrs. J. H. Shields,
who have the happy faculty of making their
guests feel at home. They are considerate people;
treat a stranger well, and charge him very mod-
erately for entertaining him When he goes away,
he will have no objections to returning—sometime.
We dined today at the Fremont House, In com:
pany with friends, Drummond and Traer. M.
Russell Jones, the proprietor of the house, Is full
of cheer always, and, after dinner, of something
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else. He sets a good table, and being an early
settler here, 1s known and popular all over the
country. He kept a public house here when the
country was so full of people—in the days of
briskest speculation, that a man was willing to pay
twenty-five cents for the privilege of standing out-
side of the inn all night, and listen at the key-hole
to the snoring within.,

Our sumptuous dinner at the Fremont House
was slightly marred by the Indisposition of M.
Drummond.  Being “under the weather,” he was
able to eat nothing excepting two plates full of
“chicken fixins,” two slices of roast beef, and
pastry to match! He Is better this evening.

One of the best bridges In the Cedar Valley
crosses the river at Vinton. \WWho built it we know
not, though, to borrow a pun from Theodore
Hook, If we should cross it we might be tolled.

There 1s good water power here. All that Is
needed Is a race two miles long, which can easily
be dug—and wll be, sometime. Vinton is bound
to rise, for the country Is rich around It, and the
trade and business of the county centers here.
Two or three years hence, when the Cedar Valley
Raillroad spans Benton county, a livery stable for
Iron horses may be located here.

The first entry of land In Benton county was
made In 1844; there was but little settlement, how-
ever, prior to 1851, when it became rapid and has
thus continued up to this time, with some modera-
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tion during the past year. The soll of the county
Is very fertile; it is well watered; has an abundance
of timber and limestone, and holds out strong In-
ducements to emigrants. It Is partly in the valleys
of the Cedar river and the lowa, the former cross-
Ing the northwestern townships; the latter the
southwestern.—Tributaries of these large and
beautiful streams flow from elevated prairie land
In the central part of the county. These tributaries
are called creeks, and take the names of Prairie,
Bear, Salt, Wild Cat, Mud, Crooked, Pratt,
Hinckley, Rock, Big, Blue and Dudgeon.—Some
of them we have crossed, and their water Is as
clear as crystal. Considerable timber Is found on
some of them. Several beautiful groves are found
In Benton county.

In this county are four flouring mills, and six-
teen saw mills. There are also sixteen post offices.
Aside from the county seat, are several little vil-
lages. Marysville, the northeastern township, has
three hundred Inhabitants, and two churches.
Benton City, six miles east of Vinton, on the
Cedar, has at least two hundred inhabitants, and
two steam saw mills, and two steam flouring mlls.
—Shellsburg, in Center township, ten miles south-
east of Vinton, has two hundred Inhabitants.
Geneva, In Big Grove, six miles southwest of the
county seat, has about one hundred and fifty.
About twice Its size Is Irving, though a portion of

It IS In Tama county.
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Most of these facts In regard to the villages In
Benton county, we obtained from Judge Samuel
Douglas, late Democratic candidate for Secretary
of State. He is well posted In county matters,
and highly communicative. All the county roads
run on section lines alone, a plan originated by the
Judge—though this fact we learn from another
source; and the county Is well squlled with roads,
In bundmg which Judge Douglas has been one
of the prime movers. He has been in this countv
about four years. Twenty years ago he was the
editor of the Onhio State Journal, hence he Is of
Whig antecedents. He also—at a subsequent
period, we believe—edited the Cadiz, (O.) Or-
gan, and also the Tuscarawas Advocate. He Is
a veteran ex-member of the editorial fraternity.
From the exalted position of a journalist, he has
sunken to that of a County Judge! Alas! Alas!

The other officers of Benton county are, John
W. Hilkins, Treasurer and Recorder; James Chap-
In, Clerk of the District Court; Joseph Dysart,
Superlntendent of Public Instruction; James Jones,
Coroner; Elmyrrh Howard, Sheriff Wesley
WHi ple Surveyor. These officers are about
equally divided between the Republicans and
Democrats. From Mr. Joseph Dysart, the popular
and efficient Superintendent of the schools of the
county, Wwe gather the following facts: There are
twenty township school districts, and ninety-one

sub-districts, and forty-one school-houses. A few
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are well planned and properly seated; the majority
of them, however, afford but indifferent accommo-
dations to pupils. Forty-one schools were taught
last summer four months. Of the teachers, nine
were males, employed at an average compensation
of twenty-one dollars per month; thirty-two fe-
males, whose average pay amounted to thirteen
dollars per month. About seventy-five per cent
of the textbooks used were recommended by the
Superintendent of Public Instruction. There are
now fifty-five schools in operation. Between five
and twenty-one years of age there are 3098 per-
sons—1662 males, and 1436 females. For the
support of Schools the County Judge levied
$3,794.96—the townships boards $5,816.99—in
all $9,611.95. For the erecting and furnishing of
school-houses there was levied the sum $6,518.94;
for incidental expenses, $688.65. Taxes for the
support of schools were levied inall but four town-
ships In the county.—Ninety-five teachers’ cer-
tificates have been granted. The people generally
manifest a deep Interest In education.

The Chicago, lowa and Nebraska Railroad Is
projected across this county, with a branch run-
ning up the Cedar Valley through Vinton. The
Dubugue Western road will doubtless touch the
southeastern part of the county.

From five to ten thousand gallons of sorghum
have been raised in Benton county this year, and
the farmers will go Into the business much more
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extensively next year. We met, as we came up
from Cedar Rapids yesterday, two or three droves
of fine looking shoats, raised In Benton county.
We are told that there are several horses of the
Morgan stock In this county. Mr. J. E. Van-
Meter, of Union township, has a large stock of
pure short horn and Durham cattle. But few sheep
are raised here, and not many mules—An agri-
cultural society Is needed In Benton county, and
will probably be organized in a few months. It
will do much to excite competition, and thus to
Improve the stock of the county. We say to the
enterprising farmers and mechanics of Benton
county, fail not to have a Fair in the autumn of
1859, Among other animals to be exhibited then,
will be a calf, the property of “mine host,” M.
Shields. We have seen nothing superior to it In
the Cedar Valley, except the calf at Waterloo, of
\gﬁich We spoke last September—owned by Henry
erman.

About a mile from Vinton, are thirty or forty
trappers, camped out, of the Mishquaqua [Mes-
uaki] trice. Game of the fur kind Is abundant In
this county. We have seen today more muskrats
nests, within two miles of Vinton, than we ever
saw before. Minks are also plenty, and their pelts

are In fair demand. The Indians take no paper
money for them, and prefer articles of clothing to
silver, their favorite coin. Beaver and otters are
caught within one mile of Vinton village. Thus,
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as We told the members of the Vinton Literary As-
sociation last evening,

Beside the stream where beavers build today,
And timid muskrats unmolested play,
Tomorrow stands the village, spreading wide.
Henceforth the home where Culture shall abide.

Sunday, December 19

Al the seat of justice of Benton county, we find
some very worthy clergymen. Mr. Chapin, Pas-
tor of the Baptist Church, Mr. James Kirk of the
Old School Presbyterian, and Mr. Nelson C.
Robinson of the New School, are held In high es-
teem, not only by the members of their several
congregations, but by the community generally.
We speak of these gentlemen because we have
made thelr acquaintance and have ascertained
their standing. They are Interested In the mental
culture as well as moral welfare of the people of
Vinton, and are doing their best to sustain a Liter-
ary Assoclation, which has recently been formed.
We trust they will make a moverment, without de-
lay, towards securing the erection of a Union
School House—at present, the chief desideratum
of this lovely village.

We were pleased, this morning, with Mr. Ashel
Chapin's reading of the Scriptures. He read
naturally, and evidently with the intention of mak-
Ing the sense clear and the sentiment Impressive.
Why Is there not more pains taken with this exer-
cise? Why should we have so much execrable and
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excruciating pulpit readings? We know of one
man who reads hymns so badly, that some people
meke It an excuse to stay away from his church.
There Is no reason why ministers should recite
poetry worse than school boys a dozen years old.
Even In a pulpit, the voice should fall when the
sense requires It, though It be In the middle of a
verse. We fear the spirit of Dr. Watts would rest
very uneasily, could he listen to some Sabbath
recitations. A hymn well read, mekes a good Im
pression, as Well as when it is well sung. There
IS N0 devotion In murderlng It In either exercise.

Again, why do ninety-nine hundredths of min-
Isters and of praying laymen, fail to let the voice
fall, In closing a prayer, before pronouncing the
word “amen?” This word is as complete a sen-
tence as there Is in the English language. We have
heard a great many doctors of dIVInlg/ make a
prayer, but few that were sufficient doctors of
elocution as to close a petition at the throne of
grace with aBroper cadences. Children, we believe,
are Invariably taught or alloned, In reciting the
Lord’s Prayer, to run the last two sentences Into
one, but doctors of divinity and all men, should not
only put away “childish things" but childish meth-
ods of recitation.



Black Hawk County

<3 Porte City December 20th

Halted this evening at La Porte City In the
township of Big Creek, Black Hawk county. The
village 1s situated on Wolf Creek; was laid out
by Dr. Jesse Wasson, formerly of La Porte,
Indiana; and numbers about two hundred and
twenty-five Inhabitants. The several trades, 8c.
are represented here by men seemingly of consid-
rable enterprise. The merchants and mechanics
are S. R Osgood, dry goods dealer and grocer;
Brooks & Ings, grocers; Lewts Turner, dry goods
dealer and grocer; W. Ings, harness meker;
George Banger, shoe dealer; W. Arner, tailor;
William Wilson, and Buffum & Oaks, black-
smiths; Morgan Loomis, and C. C. Charles, wag-
on makers; and J. S. Rolph, house and sign paint-
er.

The Hotels are the City, where we are stop-
ping, kept by Wm. Fox; the New Brick, by S. W.
Fero, and the Ottawa House. The physicians are
Wasson &CQren; the lawyers, George Bishop and
R B Sherman. Otis G. Day Is teaching the public
school. John A Fosdick has an extensive steam
saw, shingle and lath mill; B. W. Culver has a

brick yard, and N. C Turner is building an all
3%




BLACK HAWK COUNTY 397

mil. There are two limestone quarries within one-
fourth of a mile of the village. There Is timber In
abundance on Wolf Creek, as well as on the
Cedar, which latter stream flons one mile east
of the village.

La Porte City was settled in April, 1855, and
hence Is less than four years old. It Is the only
village or point of the least Importance between
Vinton and Waterloo. Its distance is fifteen miles
from either place. Being surrounded by a rich
country, and possessing every element of success,
We see no reason why It should not have a rapid
and continued growth. It will be an important
station on the Cedar Valley Railroad which wll
probably run directly through the town. Dir.
Wasson showed his good sense and judgment In
sticking his stakes here. Mr. Bishop Is a worthy
man, whose track we crossed years ago in ramb-
ling through the Genesee Valley. Mr. Sherman
IS quite a young man, and Is a land agent as well
as lavwyer.

Our halt here was sudden and unexpected, and
IS being made more agreeable than we had an-
ticipated.

Cedar Falls December 21

We came to Waterloo this morming with Doctor
Wasson, who drives a span of fast horses;, and
from the beautiful county seat of Black Hawk, to
Cedar Falls, where we halt for the nignt, we
care by stage. The country between La Porte
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City and Waterloo Is a fine tract, in the heart of
Cedar Valley, which valley is as fertile and, in all
respects, as Inviting to settlers, as any we have
seen In our wanderings through the wide West.

We halted in Waterloo long enough to share
sumptuously at the dinner table, with our friend,
Sylvester Bagg, Esg., who is always full of good
cheer—to say nothing of any other fullness. It
does one as much good to look upon his round
and ruddy face In a cold winter day as upon an
open fire-place, with half a cord of well-burning

wood In It.

Waterloo, with the nrusic of her water-fall; her
elegant private houses, her peerless court house;
her neat church edifices; her excellent schools; her
good hotels and other indices of thrift and culture,
IS an attractive place to the traveler. When the
Cedar Valley Railroad Is opened from Cedar
Rapids to Waterloo, the latter town will be a still
more stirring point. Mr. C. J. Plato’ elegant and
tasty bank building, is now completed and occu-
pied, and we noticed a few other 1mprovements
since We passed through Waterloo last September.

Of Cedar Falls we have but little to say. Its
present condition and prospects were fully set
forth in the Times last fall, when the Editorial
Convention met here. The town has the elements
of prosperity, and Is destined to become one of the
largest cities on the Cedar. The Cedar Falls Rail-
road, and not the Cedar Valley, as stated by a
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correspondent in the Times of December 23rd
(Issued In advance of date) Is to here forma junc-
tion with the Dubugue and Pacific road. As stat-
ed by the same correspondent, Cedar Falls has
five churches. One or two houses of worship are
completed or projected. Rev. Mr. W. K Walton,

late of Dubuque, and now pastor of the

Baptist

Church here, 1s to be ordained December 23rd.
Mr. George Secord, of the American, Is as at-
tentive to travelers as ever.
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